
CAPSULE SUMMARY 
BA-3108 
Hooker's Ridge 
218 Sherwood Road 
Cockeysville, Baltimore County 
Circa 1780 
Private 

The dwellig at 218 Sherwood Road is located in the vicinity of Cockeysville in the Eighth District 

of Baltimore County. The patent for Hooker's Ridge, containing one hundred and fifty-one acres, 

was recorded on March 7, 1732. At some point between 1732 and 1821, Grace Clark sold the 

property to the Jessop family, according to a reference made in an 1828 deed for the property. 

The log dwelling was most likely built during the last quarter of the eighteenth century while the 

property was under the ownership of either Grace Clark or the Jessop family. The Jessop family 

owned the property until 1850 when it was sold to Samuel Feast. In 1865, Samuel Feast sold the 

property to August Huke. The property remained in the Huke/Gallahan/Carter family, passing 

from one generation to the next until 1980, when the current owners purchased the property. 

The earliest section of the dwelling was built circa 1780. Additions and alterations were 

completed circa 1910 and again in 1980s, resulting in a Modern-style exterior. The two-and-a-

half-story dwelling is four bays wide and has an L-shaped footprint disrupted by the entry 

vestibule, which projects diagonally to the northeast. The oldest section of the dwelling and the 

circa 1910 addition rest on a solid random rubble stone foundation while the 1982 addition is 

supported by a parged cinderblock foundation. The log structure and both the additions are of 

wood-frame construction. The exterior is clad with wood shingles. The dwelling has wide eaves, 

a boxed wood cornice, and a combination shed and gable roof covered with asphalt shingles. 

Three chimneys rise above the roof. The contributing barn, built circa 1850, is located to the 

northeast of the house, the underground bomb shelter is located to the southwest of the house and 

the pool and sundeck extend to the south from the south elevation of the house. 



Maryland Historical Trust inventory NO BA-3108 

Maryland Inventory of 

Historic Properties Form 

1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name) 

historic Hooker's Ridge (preferred) 

other The Ridge 

2. Location 
street and number 218 Sherwood Road not for publication 

city, town Cockeysville vicinity 

county Baltimore County 

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners) 

name James J. and Virginia M. Ryan 

street and number 218 Sherwood Road telephone Not Available 

city, town Cockeysville state MP zip code 21030 

4. Location of Legal Description 
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Baltimore County Courthouse tax map and parcel: 42/146 

city, town Towson liber 6145 folio 207 

5. Primary Location of Additional Data 
Contributing Resource in National Register District 
Contributing Resource in Local Historic District 
Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
Recorded by HABS/HAER 
Historic Structure Report or Research Report 
Other 

6. Classification 
Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count 

district _ agriculture landscape Contributing Noncontributing 

"jf" buildinq(s) ~>T f — c o m m e r c e / t r a c l e recreation/culture ]_ buildings 

Z structure b o t h 6 ^ d e f e n s e reli9ion sites 
X domestic social 2 structures 

site — . — . — 
education transportation objects 

object — , — .. ^ * , 
funerary work in progress 2 1 Total 
government unknown 
health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources 
industry other: previously listed in the Inventory 

0 



7. Description Inventory No. BA-3108 

Condition 

excellent deteriorated 
good ruins 
fair J L altered 

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

The dwelling at 218 Sherwood Road is sited far back from Sherwood Road at the end of a long shared paved driveway in a rural, 
partially wooded setting. The east facing dwelling is sited on a sloping landscaped lot amongst foundation plantings and mature 
trees and shrubs. Also on the property are two historic structures and one non-historic structure. The barn, built circa 1850, is 
located to the northeast of the house, the underground bomb shelter is located to the southwest of the house and the pool and 
sundeck extend to the south from the south elevation of the house. 

EXTERIOR 

The earliest section of the dwelling was built circa 1780. Additions and alterations were completed circa 1910 and again in 1980s, 
resulting in a Modern-style exterior. The two-and-a-half-story dwelling is four bays wide and has an L-shaped footprint disrupted 
by the entry vestibule, which projects diagonally from the east elevation to the northeast. The oldest section of the dwelling and 
the circa 1910 addition rest on a solid random rubble stone foundation while the 1982 addition is supported by a parged 
cinderblock foundation. The oldest section is a log structure and both the additions are of wood-frame construction. The entire 
exterior was clad with wood shingles during the 1980s renovations. The dwelling has wide eaves, a boxed wood cornice, and a 
combination shed and gable roof covered with asphalt shingles. Three chimneys rise above the roof. The interior-end brick 
chimney is located in the east gable end, there is one interior brick chimney with a corbeled cap rising from the older section of the 
house, and one exterior-end chimney (clad in wood shingles) is located on the north elevation. 

The projecting front-gabled bay visible on the east elevation dates to circa 1910 while the rest of the facade was built in 1982. The 
east elevation features the main entrance set in the projecting entry vestibule and accessed by a raised wooden walkway. The entry 
vestibule is one story in height and one bay wide. The single-leaf wood 8-paneled door is centered in the east elevation of the 
vestibule and is set in a molded wood surround with a cavetto profile. The inset panels of the door are decorated with floral 
motifs. A full-length 1-light fixed wood sash sidelight is positioned to the south of the door and is repeated on either side of the 
entry vestibule. The second story features two fixed 1-light windows. None of the windows feature surrounds or sills. The north 
elevation of the projecting gabled bay is visible only from the east elevation. It features two double-hung wood sash 1/1-light 
windows, one on each of the two stories. 

The north elevation of the dwelling was built during the 1982 renovations. It exhibits a parged raised basement and a one-story, 
three-bay porch supported by wood posts covered with a wooden lattice and featuring square wood posts and a shed roof. There 
are two entrances on this elevation, one contains a single-leaf flush wood door set in a square-edged wood surround, while the 
other is a two-leaf sliding glass door leading to the enclosed sun porch. The first story is lit by a 1-light wood awning window, a 1-
light wood casement window, and two 1/1-light wood sash windows, while the second story contains two 1-light wood awning 
windows, one 1-light wood casement window and one 2-light wood combination awning and casement window. Again the 
windows do not feature surrounds or sills. 

The west elevation also features a parged raised basement. The basement contains three two-leaf sliding glass doors, three fixed 
aluminum sash 1-light windows and two sliding aluminum sash 1/1-light windows. The first story is marked by the one story, six 
bay sun porch which features fifteen 1-1 light wood sash windows grouped in pairs and sets of threes. The second story contains 
nine windows which repeat the form and placement of the first-story windows. The upper half-story contains nine aluminum 
sliding sash 1/1-light windows. Six skylights are set in the shed roof over the second story. 

The south elevation consists of the sun porch built in 1982, one bay of the log structure and two bays of the circa 1910 addition. 
The parged raised basement features one double-hung wood sash 6/6-light window and one double-leaf aluminum sliding glass 
door. Three double-hung wood sash 1/1-light windows light the first story and are repeated in the second story. The first story 
also contains one double-leaf aluminum sliding glass door. The upper half story contains one fixed wood sash 1-light window and 



Maryland Historical Trust Inventory No. BA-3108 

Maryland Inventory of 
Historic Properties Form 

Name Hooker's Ridge (preferred) 
Continuation Sheet 

Number 7 Page 1 

one opening covered with a sheet of metal. 

INTERIOR 

Upon entering the dwelling the three phases of construction are immediately evident. The log house forms the southwest corner of 
the dwelling while the circa 1910 addition extends to the east from the east elevation of the log building. The 1982 addition has 
extended the dwelling to the north and east to create the L-shaped footprint. The log dwelling is two stories in height and two bays 
wide. The exterior walls of the east, north, and west elevations are exposed and visible within the house. The logs are hand-hewn, 
showing adze marks, and exhibit mortise-and-tenon construction. The original chinking material, mainly wood and stone, has been 
recently removed and the space between the logs has been filled with plaster. One window opening, located in the north wall, 
which now divides the kitchen from the living, is the only opening that has been retained. All other openings have either been 
removed due to the desire to create or widen entrances, or they have been covered over by the 1982 additions. The north exterior 
wall of the circa 1910 wing is also visible from the interior. According to the current owner, the log house and the circa 1910 
addition was clad in German weatherboards. These were removed during the 1982 renovations and currently the exterior walls are 
covered with drywall. The entrance to the 1900 wing exists but the door is a replacement. The two-room log house now contains 
the kitchen and dining room on the first floor and two bedrooms on the second. The original chimney and stair for this log 
dwelling create the dividing wall between the two rooms. The living room is located on the first floor of the circa 1910 ell and 
there is a bedroom on the second floor. The family room, hall, closets, bathroom, and sun porch are part of the 1982 addition. All 
the interior rooms underwent substantial alterations during the 1982 renovations and almost all the materials and trim date to this 
renovation, with the exception of the baseboards in the dining room. 

The entrance to the dwelling opens onto a half-story landing from which an open-stringer stair provides access to the first and 
second floors. The landing has a brick floor, drywall walls and ceiling. The door and sidelight are set in a stock molded wood 
surround with a beaded cyma recta profile that decorates all the door and window surrounds unless otherwise noted. 

The hall is located in the 1982 addition and is open to the family room, which was also constructed in 1982. Both rooms have one-
and-a-half-inch floorboards, which cover almost the entire first floor, baseboards, drywall walls and ceilings. Two timber beams 
stretch across the ceiling of the living room. The windows and doors are set in wood surrounds. The fireplace has a hearth with a 
soldier course brick surround and is located in the north wall of the family room. A bathroom, closet, and utility room all open 
onto the hall and are finished with the same materials, except for the bathroom floor, which is tiled. 

A large opening with a folding door and a molded wood surround provides access to the sun porch from the family room. The 
floor of the sun porch is carpeted and the walls are clad in new German weatherboards. The windows of the sun porch are set in 
flush wood surrounds. 

The living room, positioned to the south of the hall, is located in the circa 1910 ell. Access is provided from the hall by the circa 
1910 entrance. The replacement wood door features four inset panels set in a molded wood surround with cyma reversa and 
beaded molded profile. The entrance also features a transom with a replacement leaded stained glass light. The five-inch wood 
baseboards, dating to circa 1910, have a thumbnail bead molding. The window sills are set in wood molded surrounds with a 
profile matching the door surround. The replacement molded wood sills have a cyma recta and scotia profile. The hearth opening 
is set in a soldier-course surround and the replacement wood mantle features geometric decorative molding. 

The dining room is located in the southern bay of the log building and is accessed from the living room through a large cut 
opening, a result of the 1982 renovations. According to the owner the portion of the wall removed contained an entry and window 
opening. The walls and ceiling of the dining room are plastered and the baseboard and window surrounds and sills repeat what was 
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found in the living room. The chimney, located within the north wall, had a hearth, which served the dining room but was 
subsequently covered during the 1982 renovations. The original winding stair located to the east of the fireplace survives and 
provides access to the second story as well as the basement. The two-paneled wood door has a mortise-and-tenon lock and a metal 
knob. A cabinet is located on the west side of the chimney and it features a similar door with a faceted glass knob. Both doors, as 
well as the open entrance to the basement, are set in molded wood surrounds with beaded and round molding profiles. A narrow 
entry to the kitchen is to the west of the cabinet and it features a wood four-paneled door with a facaeted glass knob. A large 
opening was cut through the west wall of the log dwelling to provide access from the dining room to the sun porch. 

The kitchen is located in the northern section of the log dwelling. The kitchen was updated during the 1982 renovations and it 
does not retain any features from an earlier period. The floor is covered with vinyl and the log walls are covered with drywall. A 
two-leaf flush wood door provides access from the kitchen to the hall and an opening provides access from the kitchen to the sun 
porch. The doors are set in the same surrounds found in the rest of the 1982 addition. 

The second floor contains five rooms. A study and bathroom are located above the living room and two bedrooms above the 
dining room and kitchen. All these rooms retain four-inch floorboards which date to the circa 1910 alterations. The six-inch 
beaded baseboards present in these rooms also dates to this period. All the window and door surrounds however date to the late 
twentieth century. All the entries feature replacement flush wood doors. A third bedroom with a loft is located in the 1982 
addition. The rooms in the basement feature either carpeted or vinyl clad floors, and drywall walls and ceilings. All the materials 
and details repeat what was found in the 1982 addition. 

SECONDARY RESOURCES 

A one-story barn, built circa 1850, is located to the northeast of the house. Set on a solid random rubble stone foundation, the 
wood-frame structure features board-and-batten cladding and has a wood cornice and a side gable roof covered with asphalt 
shingles. The gable ends are clad in vertical boards. The east elevation features a re-built cinderblock foundation and a central 
entry with a roll-up metal door. A shed roof overhang supported by wood brackets. The entry is flanked by 1-light fixed 
aluminum sash windows and there is also one 2-light fixed aluminum sash window. The north elevation contains a second entry 
with a roll-up metal door set in the raised foundation. 

The circa 1950 bomb shelter is constructed of cinder-blocks and bricks and is built into a hillside. The entrance features a one-leaf 
replacement flush wood door. The Iinground pool and surrounding deck date to the 1980s. 



8. Significance Inventory No. BA-3108 

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below 

1600-1699 agriculture economics health/medicine performing arts 
-X. 1700-1799 archeology education industry — philospohy 

1800-1899 JL architecture engineering invention politics/government 
_X_ 1900-1999 art entertainment/ landscape architecture religion 

2000- commerce recreation law science 
communications ethnic heritage literature social history 
community planning exploration/ maritime industry transportation 
conservation settlement military other: 

Specific dates c.1780, cl980 Architect/Builder Unknown 

Construction dates c.1780, c.1980 

Evaluation for: 

National Register Maryland Register X not evaluated 

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of 
the history of the resource and its context. (For compliance reports, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.) 

The earliest section of the dwelling at 218 Sherwood Road was constructed in the late eighteenth century and was enlarged by the 
addition of an ell in the early twentieth century. In the dwellings two hundred-plus year history only five families have owned the 
property. The Jessop family may have owned the property for over one hundred years and the Huke/Gallahan/Carter family lived in 
the dwelling for one-hundred-and-fifteen years. During the 1980s, the building was substantially altered, obscuring most of the 
original form and details and causing the removal of original materials. 

HISTORY 

The dwellig at 218 Sherwood Road is located in the vicinity of Cockeysville in the Eighth District of Baltimore County. The Eighth 
District is bounded on the north by the Fifth and Seventh Districts, on the east by the Ninth and Tenth, on the south by the Ninth 
and Third, and on the west by the Fourth and Fifth Districts. It is the third largest district of the county covering over 62 square 
miles. During the late nineteenth century its primary source of income was its mining for iron ore, marble, and limestone. It also 
maintained numerous grist mills and saw mills in addition to paper factories.(1) 

Cockeysville was founded and named after Joshua Cockey, the primary landowner in the area. The town is strategically located a 
half a mile east of the Beaver Dam marble quarries. Marble quarrying began in this region in 1780 and fully developed between 
1815 and 1829. Shortly thereafter, the area's abundant limestone deposits were quarried. Before the construction of the Baltimore 
and Susquehanna Railroad, Cockeysville was composed primarily of large farms with buildings scattered over the landscape. In 
1838, the Baltimore and Susquehanna Railroad officially opened for travel from Baltimore to the Maryland/Pennsylvania line. The 
railroad passed through the center of Cockeysville and its operation enabled Cockeysville to grow into a larger community that 
included a wide array of commercial interests for a town of its size. By the mid-1800s, Cockeysville's commercial structures 
included a carriage manufacturer, carpentry shop, butcher's shop, dentist's office, distillery, and saloon. There were at least two 
general stores, blacksmith's shops, cobblers, and medical doctors. By 1881, the small town's population had grown to 270 people 
located at this important intersection. By the late 19th century, the town of Cockeysville and its vicinity had established a 
flourishing trade industry supported by agriculture, mills, and marble quarries.(2) 

The patent for Hooker's Ridge, containing one hundred and fifty-one acres, was recorded on March 7, 1732.(3) At some point 
between 1732 and 1821, Grace Clark sold the property to the Jessop family, according to a reference made in an 1828 deed for the 
property.(4) The log dwelling was most likely built during the last quarter of the eighteenth century while the property was under 
the ownership of either Grace Clark or the Jessop family. The form of the log building resembles other log dwellings constructed in 
Baltimore County during the late eighteenth century such as the Merrick Log Cabin built in 1783 (BA-2771). The Jessop family 
owned the property until 1850 when it was sold to Samuel Feast (5). The Jessop family continued to own large tracts of land in the 
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vicinity of Ashland Furnance, north of Cockeysville, throughout the nineteenth century.(6) In 1865, Samuel Feast sold the property 
to August Huke(7). The property remained in the Huke/Gallahan/Carter family, passing from one generation to the next until 1980, 
when the current owners purchased the property.(8) Either Charles Henry Huke or his sister Helen L. Gallahan ordered the 
construction of the circa 1910 ell onto the log dwelling. 

ENDNOTES 

1. J. Thomas Scharf, History of Baltimore City and County From the Earliest Period to the Present Day: Including Biographical 
Sketches of Their Representative Men (Philadelphia, PA: Louis H. Everts, 1881. Reprinted by Higginson Book Company, Salem, 
MA), p. 876 
2. The Heritage Committee of the Greater Timonium, The Limestone Valley (Timonium, MD: The Greater Timonium American 
Bicentennial Committee, 1976), p. 15. 
3. Baltimore County Land Records, Maryland State Archives, Patent for Hooker's Ridge. 
4. Baltimore County Land Records, Maryland State Archives, Will Book DMB 13 Folio 57. 
5. Baltimore County Land Records, Baltimore County Courthouse, Liber AMB 437 Folio 151 
6. Atlas of Baltimore County (Philadelphia: G. M. Hopkins, 1877), p.48. 
7. Baltimore County Land Records, Baltimore County Courthouse, Liber JHL 46 Folio 467 
8. Baltimore County Land Records, Baltimore County Courthouse, Liber 1579 Folio 556 

CHAIN OF TITLE 

March 7, 1732 
Patent for Hooker's Ridge 

April 25, 1821 
Charles Jessop, Jr. to Charles Jessop, Sr. 
Maryland State Archives 
WG 161 Folio 101 

March 1, 1828 
Charles Jessop, Sr. to grandson Charles Nicholas Jessop 
Maryland State Archives 
DMB 13 Folio 57 

April 17, 1850 
Charles N. and Sophia Elizabeth Jessop to William Jessop 
Maryland State Archives 
Liber AWB 432 Folio 450 

June 19, 1850 
William Jessop and wife to Samuel Feast 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber AMB 437 Folio 151 
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November 14, 1865 
Samuel and Sarah Feast to August Huke 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber JHL 46 Folio 467 

November 12, 1894 
David L. Anderson, Trustee to the Estate of August Huke to Annie May Huke 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber LBM 206 Folio 505 

May 25, 1897 
Annie Mary Huke to son Charles Henry Huke 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 224 Folio 108 

February 3, 1922 
Helen L. Gallahan to son Thomas B. and Clara C. Gallahan 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber WPC 549 Folio 241 

May 9, 1934 
Thomas B. Gallahan to Cecelia M. Hanson 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber CWB, Jr. 925 Folio 479 

May 9, 1934 
Cecelia M. Hansen to Thomas B. Gallahan and Helen R. Carter 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber CWB, Jr. 925 Folio 480 

August 14, 1947 
Helen H. and John H. Carter to B. Gertrude Maxwell 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 1579 Folio 550 

August 14, 1947 
B. Gertrude Maxwell to Helen H. and John H. Carter 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 1579 Folio 556 

March 17, 1980 
H. Anthony Miller, Representative of the Estate of John H. Carter to James J. and Virginia Ryan 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 6145 Folio 207 



9. Major Bibliographical References inventory NO BA-3108 
_________________——________________________________________________________________________ 

See continuation sheet. 

10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of surveyed property 14.64 acres 

Acreage of historical setting 151 acres 

Quadrangle name Cockeysville Quadrangle scale 1:24,000 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

Hooker's Ridge is located at 218 Sherwood Road near Cockeysville in the Eighth District of Baltimore County. It has historically 
been association with tax map 42 parcel 146. 

11. Form Prepared By 
name/title J. Riggle, Architectural Historian 

organization EHT Traceries date 3/26/03 

street and number 1121 Fifth Street, NW telephone 202/393-1199 
city or town Washington state DC zip code 20001 

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland 
Legislature to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 
supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only 
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical Trust 

DHCD/DHCP 

100 Community Place 

Crownsville MD 21032 

410-514-7600 
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